
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 

AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Monday, October 211st, 2024 

In-Person, Large Room,  

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits.   

 
I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Bernier 

 
II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS:  

A) Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council 

action (making motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.   

B) Trivia Question – Council Vice President Dann  

 
III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 

Note – All Times are approximate  

A)  Review of Funds, 2025 Budget Work – 25 minutes  

B) 2025 Goals, Priorities for Council – 15 minutes  

C) Take-aways from Borough Association Leadership Conference – 15 minutes  

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is 

scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.  

 

 

 
    

 

 

http://www.cnet1.org/
























1 

 

 

 

 

 

  
6:30 PM, Work Session 

Council Business Meeting 

AGENDA 

7:30 PM Monday, October 21st, 2024 

In-Person, Large Meeting Room, 

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Bernier 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

III. ROLL CALL 

Mr. Bernier, President, North Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward  Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Ms. Dann, Vice-President, South Ward  Mr. Larson, Jr. Council Member  

Mr. Johnson, Pro Tempore, North Ward  Mayor Johnson, At Large  

Ms. McKean, West Ward    

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Under Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council may not take official action on it with the 

following exceptions. Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies. Council may add a 

matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. The council must state why the action item is 

being added to the Agenda. Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral) 

 
This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding action items listed on this meeting agenda. 

You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit representative, business owner, or an official 

representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify themselves by name and street, 

municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 

 

VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at 

www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON. The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits. 

http://www.cnet1.org/


2  

VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
 

Fee Waiver Request, Governors Baseball Club use of Governors Park John Montgomery Ward Field for tournament.  
Council may take action to modify the motion.  Motion/2nd to reduce the field rental fee to an amount specified in the 
motion.   
Gas compressor Upgrade Open House for Project Information.  Tuesday, October 22nd, 2024, 5:30-7:30PM, Lambert Hall.  
FYI.  No council action is requested.  

Request to Discuss Centre County Long Range Transportation Plan, Work Session on November 18th.  This topic will be 
scheduled for a 20 minute time allotment. FYI. No council action is requested.  

 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There will be 

no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for separate 

action. 

Finance Budget V. Actual September 2024  

Finance Budget V. Actual Summary September 2024  

General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes October 7th, 2024 

General Solicitor Stover Invoice  

General Labor Counsel Invoice  

Finance Treasurer’s Report September 2024 will be in the next packet 

Finance Voucher summary September 2024 will be in the next packet 

Call for a Motion/ 2nd  to approve the Consent Agenda. 

VII. REPORTS 
Elected Official and Staff Reports 
Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor Mayor Johnson Verbal  

Police 
➢ September 2024 Report 

Chief Witmer Submitted  

Parking 
➢ September 2024 Report 

Ms. McCullough Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA): See memo for report and updates 

No action items for Council. 

➢ Planning Commission meeting is Monday, November 11 at 5:00 p.m.  

➢ HARB meeting is Tuesday, November 12 at 8:30 a.m. 

➢ See memo for email regarding business permitting program. 

Ms. Thompson Submitted  

Code Enforcement 

➢ September 2024 Report 

  Mr. Barr Submitted  

Borough Manager Mr. Stewart Submitted  

 

Liaison Reports 

Reports will be submitted in writing for inclusion in the council meeting materials. Reports may include 

draft meeting minutes, notes, memos, etc. No verbal report is to be given unless there is a question regarding 

the report. If council action is requested, please clearly indicate it, including the wording, so that it can be 

stated on the council meeting agenda 



3  

ADMINISTRATIVE LIAISON REPORT 

Bandshell/Performance Center Project Committee   

Bellefonte Area Industrial Development Authority (BAIDA)   

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services Mr. Rhoat Submitted  

Bellefonte Intervalley Chamber of Commerce Ms. Brooks Submitted  

Bellefonte Police Pension Board Mr. Stewart  

Centre County 2024 Solar & EV Charger Co-Op Ms. Brooks  

Centre County Boroughs Association Ms. Dann  

Centre County Government Mr. Stewart  

CNET Board of Directors Mr. Holderman  

Downtown Bellefonte Inc. (DBI) Ms. Thompson  

Governor’s Park   

Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority   

Penn State University Sustainability Projects   

Shade Tree Commission   

Union Cemetery Association   

Zoning Hearing Board Ms. Thompson  

AUTHORITIES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Borough Authority – October Draft meeting minutes Mr. D. Johnson Submitted  

Centre County Airport Authority – Sept. 12th meeting minutes Mr. D. Johnson Submitted  

COMMISSIONS / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Civil Service Commission Mr. Brachbill  
Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission Mr. D. Johnson  

Spring Creek Watershed Commission Mr. Brachbill  

SPECIAL COMMITTEES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Centre County Library Board Ms. Cleeton Submitted 

Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) Public Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Talleyrand Park Committee Ms. Dann  

Workplace Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill Submitted 

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS / APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission (NVJPC) Ms. Thompson  

Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) Mr. D. Johnson  
 

IX. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
An Executive Session for Personnel and Legal Matters was held at the conclusion of the October 7th, 2024 Council 
Meeting.  FYI. No council action is requested.  
Update on the Waterfront Development Project. Development may start in 2025.  FYI.  No council action is requested.  

Lease Agreement with Bellefonte Area School District re: Governors Park Ballfield.  At the council agenda planning 
meeting, it was recommended that a copy of the lease be provided to council.  FYI. No council action is requested.   
Bandshell Group/Stage at Talleyrand Request for Big Spring wells information from Borough Authority.  The 
information was forwarded and included here for your review.  FYI.  No council action is requested.  
Large Wooden Desks at 301 North Spring Street.  The desks have been posted on Municibid.com.  This information is on 
the borough website as well.  The closing for bids is November 18th.  FYI. No council action is requested.  
Water Service Line Inventory Submitted. The Authority is under a mandate from PA DEP/US EPA to complete a water 
service line Inventory by October 16, 2024.  The Authority has complied with this mandate.  Letters must be sent to 
water system customers within 30 days that have “unknown” or unverified water service line materials.  FYI. No council 
action is requested.   
Centre Count Liquid Fuels Grant Application.  Council approved an application to fund streetlighting materials.  Staff 
conversed with the Penn Dot Municipal Services representative regarding the project. Since our streetlighting is 
separately taxed, it was recommended that we choose a different project.  Staff submitted an application for $25,000 for 
stamped crosswalks on Spring from High to Bishop.  FYI. No council action is requested.  



4  

Centre County Economic Development Plan. This plan was unveiled on October 9th.  The entire plan can be reviewed at 
centrecountyforward.com.  FYI. No council action is requested.  

 

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
Bellefonte Fire Department Use of Space, Ground Floor of 301 North Spring Street.  On Monday, October 14th, Fire 
Department reps looked at the space and indicated there interest in establishing an office and small meeting room.  
Borough staff will clean out the space and get it ready as time/labor permits.  FYI. No council action is requested.   
 

 

 

a. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting agenda. 

Speakers shall identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of 

Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 

 

b. ADJOURNMENT 

The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM 

 

The Council Code of Conduct and the 2024 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda. 

 

Executive Session – Personnel Matters  

https://b5u9asdab.cc.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001dWLq-j__owYNAD8NtiVe-NFvTsPMMJRmGqVhWyXZt1PSlMsnCB5JEGoU31ZM5kPcq7yv0tkEh_EqMbDlSROX-bKsbNWprcw5s2NiOX0s-GmA3UsbWGOcTFwQGqvv8UnOAzHLIWbhwsHhM6tAH2hwZZ8d3J-w6U4P&c=Ojbr04N2jJ40zBAJg-ctaBQipTRWiUHYIReIlVlL3CP5LXV1JZ9zbg==&ch=7L1ztspXUkABRgrh9l2tZtmXp2Ll93wWUrWezfLbfKKB-tic8NCHDg==


1

Ralph Stewart

From: Governors Baseball Club <governorsbaseballclub@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2024 9:11 AM
To: Ralph Stewart
Subject: Re: Governors Park Baseball Field Request-Fee Reduction

Thank you for getting back to us! 
 
We operate as a small club not an organization so we don't have a 501c3 due to the costs it would take to maintain one. 
Our club is made up of (1) team with 12 players, and 4 dads that volunteer as coaches. We do have liability insurance 
along with a Tax ID# I can provide you with if needed. 
 
We're not looking for the fee to be waived. We're asking for a possible reduced fee to use the field for one weekend this 
summer. We understand money is needed to maintain the field. We were just hoping to work together to help benefit 
our local kids playing a sport that they love. 
 
Thank you for your time! 
 
Justin Grove (Team Manager) 
Cell: 814-880-7462 
Governors Baseball Club 

 

 
 
On Wed, Oct 16, 2024 at 10:55 AM Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> wrote: 

Hello, 

I do not have the authority to reduce fees for use of the Governors Park field.  The fees have been set by council to help 
offset the maintenance and replacement of the turf, when the time comes.   

  

I will include this email in the council meeting materials for their meeting on Monday, October 21st.   Please provide any 
additional details such as are you a non-profit 501c3 organization? If so, where is the registered office located?   

  

I will let you on the 22nd if any fee waiver was approved. 

  

Thank you, 

Ralph Stewart  



2

  

__ 

Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 

Borough of Bellefonte  

301 North Spring Street STE 200 

Bellefonte PA 16823 

Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 

  

From: Governors Baseball Club <governorsbaseballclub@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, October 7, 2024 2:41 PM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Governors Park Baseball Field Request-Fee Reduction 

  

Mr. Stewart, 

We are a small local travel baseball team (Governors Baseball Club) entering our 4th year together. Our club/team is 
made up of 12 players ages 13 to 14 years old along with 4 coaches (We won’t mention their ages, haha). Out of our 12 
players, 10 of them attend Bellefonte Middle School. We currently practice at the Bellefonte Teener League field 
working with Jeremy Lucas.  

Mr. Lucas has been gracious enough to let our team use our local Teener League Field to practice/scrimmage on at no 
charge because he knows we are a small club/team made up of local players who just want to play as much 
competitive baseball as possible. In return and as a form of payment/gratitude our team has arranged to help with field 
maintenance and duties whenever needed throughout the year. Our relationship and agreement with Mr. Lucas works 
out well and we are thankful.  

This upcoming 2025 season our team/parents would like to host a Wooden Bat Tournament during the summer for one 
weekend (Saturday-Sunday). The money raised from this tournament would help offset team costs for our following 
season, allowing our players to keep playing the sport they all love and to give them more opportunities to travel to 
bigger tournaments throughout our state and even out of state.  

We have reached out in the past to the Bellefonte Borough about using Governors Park Field for practices and 
scrimmages and were deterred very quickly after being given the amount of $500 as a daily fee. We couldn’t believe 
and were sadden by the high amount because a small club like ours could never afford to pay that to give our local kids 
the opportunity to utilize such a nice facility in their own backyard.  



3

We are requesting if Borough Council would work with us and possibly reduce the fee for our small local team during 
this one-time event? We know Council has worked with other travel baseball teams to help offset their costs (Baseball 
U) to use Governors Field and were hoping for the same treatment.  

In the end, if we are able to utilize both field locations a tournament like this could easily bring in 300-500+ people to 
our area for the weekend. In return, the families visiting would be utilizing local hotels, housing rentals/Airbnb’s, and 
food establishments.  

We hope you take our team’s request into consideration. Please let us know if our asking needs to be put on the 
Agenda for the next Council meeting so we can have coaches/parents attend or if this can be solely an administrative 
decision. 

Thank you for your time and consideration, 

Justin Grove (Team Manager) 

Cell: 814-880-7462 

Governors Baseball Club 

 











1

Ralph Stewart

From: Hoffman, Marcella <mhoffman@crcog.net>
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2024 4:30 PM
To: Ralph Stewart
Cc: Gina Thompson
Subject: Centre County MPO Long Range Transportation Plan Update
Attachments: Bellefonte LRTP Notes 12.19.22.docx; Municipal Outreach LRTP 2055 Questions.pdf; 

LRTP Project Request Form.pdf

Good aŌernoon, Mr. Stewart 
 
The Centre County Metropolitan Planning OrganizaƟon will be pursuing an update to the current Long Range 
TransportaƟon Plan (LRTP) (hƩps://crcog.net/lrtp2050) starƟng this fall to be adopted in September 2025. An 
update to this plan requires coordinaƟon with all Centre County municipaliƟes. We plan to meet with Councils 
and Board of Supervisors to review the informaƟon and provide an opportunity for iniƟal feedback as part of 
this required planning effort. If possible, we would like to schedule Ɵme with your Council at the Monday, 
November 18 meeƟng at 7:30 PM to briefly explain the LRTP process and allow the Council members to ask 
quesƟons and provide input.  
 
I have aƩached a few documents: 

 The previous 2019 LRTP Workshop notes, along with notes from our 2022 meeƟng with the Council (in 
purple). 

 A list of five quesƟons we plan to ask the Council members. 
 A Project Request Form that the Supervisors can uƟlize to submit a project to be included in the 2055 

LRTP.  
 
Thank you for considering this request. If you have any quesƟons, please let me know.  
 
Best regards, 
Marcella 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Marcella Hoffman, Transportation Grant Specialist 
Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 4 | State College, PA | Main:  814-231-3050 | Social: @centrecountympo 



































































BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 
October 7, 2024 - 7:30 p.m. 

301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER (Council President Kent Bernier) 
The October 7, 2024 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
 
III. ROLL CALL/MEMBERS PRESENT  
 

Mr. Kent Bernier  
President,North Ward 

Ms. Shawna McKean  
West Ward   

Mr. Randy Brachbill  (via zoom) 
South Ward 

Ms. Rita Purnell 
North Ward 

Ms. Deb Cleeton  
South Ward 

Ms. Johanna Sedgwick  
West Ward  

Ms. Barbara Dann  
Vice-President, South Ward 

Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey (EXCUSED) 
West Ward  

Mr. Doug Johnson  
North Ward 

Mr. Christian Larson   
Junior Council Member 

Mayor Buddy Johnson  
At Large 

 

   
STAFF PRESENT  Mr. William Witmer, Acting Police Chief  
    Ms. Julie Brooks, Assistant Superintendent, Public Works 
    Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager  
     
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

• Ms. Dann requested to add an item to New Business regarding the personnel committee. 
There was a discussion regarding the request.  These items will be considered for a work 
session.   

 
 
 

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 7, 2024 

Page 2 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT - Agenda and Non-Agenda/General Items and Comments (Oral) 
 

• Deb Berger spoke regarding the estimate from GSS for the software for data processing. She 
is present this evening to answer any questions council may have.  

 
 
VI.  COMMUNICATIONS (Written) 

• CNET, on behalf of the Spring Creek Watershed Commission, Requesting Sponsorship 
Coverage of two meetings in 2025.  
 
Cleeton motioned and Brachbill seconded for Bellefonte Borough to sponsor two Spring 
Creek Watershed Commission meetings in 2025. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

• Centre County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – workshops for local officials / stakeholders 
and open house for public / community. October 15th and 16th. No council action required. 
 

• Centre County MPO Active Transportation Plan Open House, 3-4:30pm, 6-7:30pm, October 
9th, COG Building, Gateway Drive, State College. No action is requested. 
 

• Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services Formal Request for Funding of 1⁄2 mill, 2025 Budget. 
Council will consider this request as part of their work on the 2025 budget at a later date. No 
action is requested at this time. 
 

• Spring Creek Watershed Commission Request for 2025 Membership Dues of $915.75. Council 
will consider this request as part of their work on the 2025 budget at a later date. No action is 
requested at this time.  
 

• Article on Tamaqua Revitalization Forwarded to the Borough. No action requested. 
 
 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Consent Agenda includes the following items: 

1. General Council Meeting Minutes September 16, 2024 

2. General Borough Solicitor Invoice 

3. Finance Budget vs Actual Summary August 2024 

4. Finance Budget vs Actual August 2024 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 7, 2024 

Page 3 

 

5. Finance Treasurer’s Report, August 2024 

6. Finance Vouchers Summary, August 2024 

 
Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the Consent Agenda items 1-6. No 
discussion. Roll call vote. Motion to approve Consent Agenda items 1-6 listed above carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 
 

VIII. REPORTS   
Mayor Johnson  

• Oath of Office for Police Officer Noah Bollman 
 

Junior Council Member Report 

• Mr. Larson presented the September 2024 Bellefonte High School report. 
o Homecoming week – Bellefonte won the football game 
o  Student Store – helps give students retail experience 
o  Day of Caring – students did community service projects throughout the 

borough 
o  Mini Thon – at 40% of their goal 
o Sports report  

 
Police  (Acting Chief Witmer) 

•  NONE  
 
Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 
1. Recommended for approval (Specific motions are stated in the OCA memo): 

• NONE 
 

2. Administrative Approvals:  

• NONE  
 

3. Items of interest:  

• The next Planning Commission meeting is Monday, October 14 at 5:00 p.m. This meeting 
may be canceled as there are currently no SALDO projects for review. 

• The next HARB meeting is Tuesday, October 22 at 8:30 a.m. 
 

4. Zoning: 

• NONE 
 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 7, 2024 

Page 4 

 

Liaison Reports  (Reports were submitted) 
Comments/Additions:  

• Mr. Brachbill commented that the Spring Creek Watershed Commission meeting 
will be held Wednesday September 18, 2024 at 7pm in College Township. 

• Centre Region Code had a meeting to discuss public safety but the report was not 
included in tonight’s packet.   

 
 
IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
 

• Bellefonte Borough Authority Request for Permission to have Hydrogeological-related 
Studies Conducted on the Talleyrand Park Expanded Area. The Authority is exploring a 
concept of using wells to draw the spring water from the ground instead of the Big Spring 
pond. If ultimately successful, the cover over the Big Spring pond would not be needed.  
 
Dann motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the Bellefonte Borough Authority 
conducting Hydrogeological-related tests on the Talleyrand Park Expanded Area Property. 
Discussion included details regarding the tests and fees. Roll call vote. Motion to approve 
carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

• Real Estate Tax Collector Software Vendor Change at Centre County Government. A 
conference call with a county representative was held on September 25th. Based on the 
information given, having the borough go with the County’s new vendor, GSS, may be the 
least confusing for the taxpayer. It is recommended to go with the county’s vendor, GSS.  
 
Cleeton motioned and Dann seconded to approve the Borough choosing GSS, the same 
software vendor used by the Centre County Government and to notify the County of this 
decision. Discussion included various members discussing that the current vendor is local 
and the new vendor is not local. Roll call vote. Motion to approve carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

• Open Bids for Police Department 1st floor renovations.  
 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 7, 2024 

Page 5 

 

Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to have bids turned over to architect, awarded 
in consultation with borough staff. Roll call vote. Motion to approve carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 
3 bids: General Contractor, Mechanical/Plumbing, Electrical  
 
General Contractor: 
Mid State Construction       $123,835 
TMG Builders, Bellefonte    $128,875 
JC Orr & Son                          $135,235 
SF Construction                    $211,362    
 
Mechanical/Plumbing: 
K&K Plumbing, Johnstown  $101,642 
PBCI Allen                               $82,600 
Silvertip Inc, Lewisburg        $82,900 
 
Electrical: 
Stelco Inc, Altoona               $41,455 
Strauss Electric                     $22,235 
TMG Builders                     $64,845 
Westmoreland Electrical $25,400 
 

• Centre County Liquid Fuel Grant Application. This application is due October 18th. Projects 
of approximately $25,000 were reviewed including the purchase of materials for the 
Streetlighting renovation work and continuation of the stamped crosswalk project. 
Council may modify this motion.  
 
Dann motioned and Cleeton seconded to submit an application for $25,000 to be put 
toward the Streetlighting renovation work. Roll call vote. Motion to approve carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

• Water Service Line Inventory. The water service line inventory is to be received by PA DEP 
on or before October 16th. The Borough will comply with this due date. The Bellefonte 
Borough Authority is mandated to send out letters to customers who have unknown or 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 7, 2024 

Page 6 

 

lead service lines. The letters must be sent within 30 days of the inventory due date.  No 
council action is requested. 

 
X. NEW BUSINESS 

• Appointment of Right to Know/Open Records Officer. Don Holderman served as the 
Borough’s Right to Know/Open Records Officer. With his retirement, a new person needs 
to be appointed. The borough manager has recommended Julie Brooks to serve in this 
position.  
 
Johnson motioned and Brachbill seconded to appoint Julie Brooks as the Right to 
Know/Open Records Officer. Roll call vote. Motion to approve carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            no Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

• Penn DoT 357sqft of Park Property Donation Request related to bridge replacement project 
over Millrace. Council may consider action on this request or modify the motion.  
 
Brachbill motioned and Dann seconded to approve the donation request as described. Roll 
call vote. Motion to approve carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

• Bellefonte Borough Contributing to an Air Service Incentive Fund to help attract airlines to 
State College Regional Airport. A contribution was pledged in the past by Bellefonte 
Borough. Regional stakeholders are interested in creating a standing fund for this purpose. 
Council may take action to add this topic to a future work session. 

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

• NONE 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT   
 
Brachbill motioned and Johnson seconded to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 8:16pm.  





































































   

 

   

 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT 

September 2024 

 
 

HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

 

• Officer Neideigh attended the Narcotics Enforcement and 
Trafficking Investigations training. 
 

• Officer Neideigh attended and completed the Field Training Officer 
course. She is now a certified Field Training Officer. 
  

• Officer Lyons represented the Bellefonte Police Department at the 
annual Safety Fair in Patton Township. 
 

• All officers completed the annual rifle qualifications. 
 

• The Bellefonte Police Department would like to thank the Centre 
County DUI task force, Sgt. Hendricks of the Ferguson Twp. Police 
Department and Sgt. Albright of the Patton Township Police 
Department for spreading awareness in the Bellefonte Area. 
  

• Chief Witmer was asked to attend and speak at the Citizens Police 
Academy.  

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT      



   

 

   

 

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
 

OFFENSES 
OCCURRED 

MONTH 
2024 
YTD 

Alarms 7 57 

Assault 0 7 

Child Abuse 6 19 

Criminal Mischief 2 28 

Disorderly Conduct 12 94 

Domestics 10 75 

Drug Related 1 7 

DUI 0 14 

Harassment 11 66 

Suspicious Activity 8 138 

Theft 12 47 

Trespass 1 22 

All Others 374 3,260 

TOTAL 444 3,826 

 
CALLS MONTH 2024 YTD 

Handled by BPD 444 3,826 

Off Duty 7 72 

TOTAL 451 3,898 

 
ARRESTS MONTH 2024 YTD 

Felony 0 4 

Misdemeanor 12 54 

Summary 33 101 

TOTAL 45 159 

 
MILEAGE MONTH YTD 

34-1 300 58,424 

34-2 515 86,041 

34-3 0 125,932 

34-4 844 82,164 

34-5 499 3,786 

34-6 351 34,200 

 

 

TRAFFIC MONTH 2024 YTD 
Stops 55 362 

Citations Filed 59 276 

 

PAYMENTS 
RECEIVED 

MONTH 
2024 
YTD 

MDJ $506.00 $9,243.68 

Probation $937.75 $5,018.29 

TOTAL $1,443.75 $14,271.97 

 
ACCIDENTS MONTH 2024 YTD 

Reportable 1 17 

Non-Reportable 5 68 

TOTAL 6 85 

 
OFFICERS’ TIME MONTH 2024 YTD 

Regular Hours 1438 10,950 

Overtime Hours 11.5 412 

Reimbursed 
Overtime 

10 35.5 

Training 40 162 

TOTAL 1,500.5 11,559.5 

 

SRO MONTH 2024 YTD 
Number of Incidents 35 431 

Arrests 3 20 

Traffic (School Zone) 4 60 

Hours Worked 264 2,014 

 
PARKING MONTH 2024 YTD 

Hours Worked 165.5 1,374 

Tickets Issued 216 2,135 

Revenue $12,069.27 N/A 

 

























MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM:  Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator  
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE:  For Council Meeting October 21, 2024 

 

 

PLANNING: 
 
The Planning Commission met on October 14. The agenda is included in your packet. At the 
meeting, the Planning Commission reviewed several zoning amendments and the addition of the 
beekeeping ordinance.  
 
Beekeeping 

• Add a "definitions" section to the Animals (Chapter 193) and add language that is 
mentioned in beekeeping, such as "apiary" and "hive" — possibly others.  

• The ordinance seems to use "hive" and "apiary" interchangeably, so maybe stick with one or 
the other. Or, if there is a difference, make clear the distinction.  

• If commercial sales of honey are allowed, it only be permitted off-site and not directly from 
the residence, to maintain the intent of the residential zoning districts.  

• 193.15-A — Suggestion of making the location 20 feet rather than 25, because many lots are 
50 feet wide and therefore the 25 feet would prohibit most from beekeeping.  

• 193.15-E — there was question about how the fly away zone of bees would be enforced 
• 193.20-A — add after unhealthy "or unsafe" and omit "intentionally" because there could 

still be disruption that is unintentional.  
• 193.21 Inspection — there was a question if there would be any protections for a beekeeper 

against a neighbor that was intentionally targeting them rather than issuing a legitimate 
nuisance complaint.  

• Recommended to add a fine/fee to the fee schedule for violations 
 
Amendment to 575-124-D Ground/monument signs 

• New language to allow for institutions of higher education to install more than 
ground/monument sign on a premise that may include other organizations/businesses, for 
purposes of direction of transient student population.  

 
Public Art along the Waterfront walkway / Talleyrand Park 

• There was consensus that this should be allowed, but how it should be regulated or 
enforced requires some more research. PC asked me to research other 
boroughs/municipalities that allow for this.  

• I informed PC this would likely work similar to a banner request, in that the organization 
would fill out a permit/paperwork application for the length of time for the art, and maybe 
on that paperwork there could be a question about how the artwork will be 
attached/displayed, how the content of the art will be determined by the organization, a 
disclaimer about responsibility, damage, etc.  

 
Other items –  

• The Waterfront Development Group needs to submit updated Land Development Plan and a 
Lot Consolidation Plan to the Borough for review by the Bellefonte Planning Commission 



 
If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 

not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov. 

and the County Planning Office. They plan to present their updated building design to HARB 
soon.  

• When discussion the Animal ordinance, it was suggested to add "peacock" to the list of 
prohibited animals, because sometimes they are kept as pets.  

• Regarding the Signage Plan for the Bellefonte Elementary: PC is looking for something that 
could be handed to the Police Chief and he could easily read and understand where all the 
signage and emergency signage is for the police and emergency needs. I'll follow up with 
Chief Witmer and HRG about this.  

 
I will submit a request to the County Planning Office and the Nittany Valley Joint Planning Region 
for their review and comments on the zoning ordinance amendments and new beekeeping 
ordinance. We will then schedule and advertise a public meeting.  
 
The next scheduled Planning Commission meeting is Monday, November 11 at 5:00 p.m. This 
meeting may be canceled as there are currently no SALDO projects for review.  
 

 
ZONING: 

 
I have included in my report an email I sent regarding the success of the Bellefonte business 
permitting program that I initiated when I started with the Borough in 2021. This is a program I am 
very proud of, and it was nice to get recognition of it from our neighbors in State College.  
 
I continue to address zoning and planning concerns and inquires, in addition to permitting. As 
permitting slows, I focus on record keeping and professional development opportunities.  
 
 

HARB: 
 
HARB will not meet on October 22, as there are no formal projects for review. I have addressed 
HARB questions, but projects have been slow. This is typical as we head into the fall/winter 
months. During this slower review time, I focus more on research and professional development.  
 
The next scheduled HARB meeting is November 12. It is likely that this meeting will take place, 
as HARB is expected to have the requested revisions to the updated Historic Guidelines from the 
consultant for review at this meeting.  

 



Outlook

A note about Bellefonte's business permitting program

From Gina Thompson <gthompson@bellefontepa.gov>
Date Tue 10/8/2024 8:13 AM
To Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>; Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>
Cc Rob Semion (work) <rjs@crcog.net>; Walter G. M. Schneider III, Ph. D. <wgms@crcog.net>; Tiffany Baker

<tjb@crcog.net>

1 attachments (1 MB)
voicemail_18142387004_10-07-2024_15-17-31.wav;

Hi all, 

I just received a voicemail from Kendra Kielbasa from the State College Downtown Improvement District. She was
very complimentary about the Bellefonte's "How to Start a Business in Bellefonte" guide and resource page on
the website. She said that State College Borough has nothing like this and would like to chat about the program,
in hopes of doing something similar in downtown State College. 

I want to share something I'm proud of: the business program I (with the help of others) implemented at the
Borough. When I began in 2021, it was clear that improving zoning clarity and organiza�on was a top priority.
Before this program, we had no record of businesses moving in and out, nor did we know which ones were
seeking assistance from the CRCA for code compliance.

One of the primary concerns we heard about the Code was inconsistency and poor communica�on, which
stemmed partly from the absence of a formal permi�ng system for new and exis�ng businesses. Now that we
have implemented this system, complaints about the CRCA have nearly vanished, and feedback is o�en posi�ve.
Overall, the community appreciates having the CRCA in Bellefonte.

The success of this program is largely thanks to the collabora�on with CRCA and Zoning, especially Rob Semion's
outstanding work in fire and safety for Bellefonte. Rob has gone above and beyond in ensuring fire safety for
commercial and rental proper�es. I've learned so much from working alongside him and having the opportunity
to shadow several rental and commercial inspec�ons to be�er grasp the Code permi�ng process.

Furthermore, when I began in March 2021, Walt made himself available when I wanted to get this program off
the ground. He, along with Tiffany Baker, offered their services to the Borough and to Downtown Bellefonte Inc.
when they hosted a "How to Start a Business in Bellefonte" workshop for local prospec�ve business owners.
Since then, they both have fielded hundreds of ques�ons from me, and I am grateful for their pa�ence and
guidance. 

There's nothing earth sha�ering in Kendra's voice message. But it was nice to get praise for a program that I've
worked hard on over the past three years, and now have it at a point now where it's an efficient and streamlined
process that only needs fine tuning when hiccups occur. If you're curious, it's a�ached to this email below. 

Thank you all for your hard work and support. We thrive on collabora�on, and our best results come from
working together, not in isola�on.

Cheers, 
Gina



~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Gina Thompson (she/her) �

HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator
Office of Community Affairs
gthompson@bellefontepa.gov
(814) 313-1573

Borough of Bellefonte
301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200 (2nd  floor)
Bellefonte, PA 16823
Borough office: (814) 355-1501
website: https://bellefonte.net/

This email may contain privileged, confidential, copyrighted, or other legally protected information. If you are not the intended recipient
(even if the email address above is yours), you may not use, copy or re-transmit it. If you have received this message in error, please
notify the sender immediately by reply to the email and delete the original message. Your compliance is appreciated.

From: no-reply@8x8.com <no-reply@8x8.com>
Sent: Monday, October 7, 2024 3:18 PM
To: Gina Thompson <gthompson@bellefontepa.gov>
Subject: New voicemail from DOWNTOWNIMPROVE
 

New voicemail from
DOWNTOWNIMPROVE
(+18142387004)

Your extension 216 just received a new voicemail. Tap the attachment
to listen to your voicemail.

Received on: Monday, October 7, 2024 3:17:31 PM      Duration:
01:12

mailto:gthompson@bellefontepa.gov
https://bellefonte.net/


AGENDA 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION  
LARGE MEETING ROOM, ARMORY BUILDING 
301 NORTH SPRING STREET, BELLEFONTE 
DATE: OCTOBER 14TH, 2024 TIME: 5:00 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL:  
Mr. Robert Dannaker, Chairman 
Mr. Chris Morelli 
Mr. Mark Edwards  
Mr. James Mills 
Mr. David Lomison  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: May 13, 2024 meeting minutes.   
  
OLD and NEW BUSINESS: None 
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES: None 
 
ORDINANCE ADDITIONS / UPDATES / AMENDMENTS:  
 Beekeeping ordinance (new) 

o 9/16/24 Council meeting – approved for public hearing. There was comment for 
allowing commercial sales of honey. If this is permitted, it’s suggested that the 
language state that it be sold off-site / no commercial sales from the residence.  
 

 Public art along Waterfront walkway / Talleyrand Park / Veterans bridge 
 

 Sign – add language to allow institutions of higher education to erect their own 
ground/monument signs on a shared premise.  
 

 Fences – omit phrase requiring fence in side yard setback facing street line about side 
yard setback (this was discussed at the 12/11/2024 Planning Commission meeting). 
 

 Retaining wall – add language or just address through Property Maintenance Code?  
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 County parking lot 
 CCMPO Active Transportation Plan 

o Draft plan and Complete Streets Guidance: https://www.crcog.net/centreatp  
 Updated Historic District Guidelines 
 Sign/Lighting enforcement in commercial districts 
 Signage plan for Bellefonte Elementary 
 EGTS proposed Capital Area Project – public notice meeting: 

o Tuesday, October 22 at Lambert Hall, 5:30 to 7:30 p.m. 
 
Additions, after meeting agenda and packet was sent out:  
 CCMPO meeting request 
 Waterfront project update 
 Mitigation Strategy and Capability Assessment Workshop 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT: ____1ST ____2ND   TIME: ____________ 

 

https://www.crcog.net/centreatp


 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
October 14, 2024 – 5:00 p.m. 

Large Meeting Room, Armory Building  
301 North Spring Street, Bellefonte, PA  16823 

www.bellefonte.net 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
The October 14, 2024 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission was called to 
order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  Robert Dannaker, Chair      
    Chris Morelli  
    Mark Edwards 
    David Lomison   
    James Mills, Secretary 
 
STAFF MEMBERS  Gina Thompson, Zoning Administrator  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES   
Mills motioned to approve the May 13, 2024 minutes. Morelli seconded.  Motion carried.   
 
OLD BUSINESS: NONE 
 
NEW BUSINESS: NONE 

 
LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES: NONE 

 
ORDINANCE ADDITIONS / UPDATES / AMENDMENTS: (in order of priority) 
• Beekeeping ordinance (new) 

o 9/16/24 Council meeting – approved for public hearing. There was comment for 
allowing commercial sales of honey. If this is permitted, it’s suggested that the 
language state that it be sold off-site / no commercial sales from the residence. 

 
• Public art along Waterfront walkway / Talleyrand Park / Veterans bridge 

o The Borough solicitor commented that a commission/borough can regulate terms 
and conditions for the hanging of the art, but cannot limit or dictate content as 
this is a violation of freedom of speech.  

o Discussion regarding murals on public/private structures 
o Suggested changes to the ordinance verbiage are: 

o (8) Temporary art displayed on Borough property of the Waterfront 
walkway, Veterans Bridge, and Talleyrand Park must first obtain 
permission (or permit?) from the Bellefonte Borough. 

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission Meeting 
Oct 14, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 

o (9) Temporary art must be affixed in such manner with no permanent 
damage to any structures. 

o (10) Temporary art displayed on Borough property is the responsibility of 
the organization in charge and must be erected and dismantled by 
organization in charge. 
 

o Gina will look into this further as there are many different angles to consider. 
 

• Signs – add language to allow institutions of higher education to erect their own 
ground/monument signs on a shared premise. 

o The current verbiage in the sign ordinance, (Chapter 575, Article XXI Signs § 575-
124. Specific Sign Uses / D. Ground/monument signs) only allows for one sign per 
property. This could pose an issue at the Match Factory – as Penn Highlands would 
not be permitted to have a sign with the current ordinance. It is suggested that 
the following verbiage be added to the current ordinance: 

o (6) Institutions of higher education (IHE) are permitted to erect [its] own 
ground/monument sign for directional purposes, but limited to a 
maximum of two ground/monument signs. 

o Sign height would still be 20ft.  
o It was suggested possibly changing the wording to specify general 

education institutions. 
 
• Fences – omit phrase requiring fence in side yard setback facing street line about side 

yard setback (this was discussed at the 12/11/2024 Planning Commission meeting). 
o Discussion regarding spite fence definition 

 
• Retaining wall – add language or just address through Property Maintenance Code 

o There is currently no language in the ordinance that addresses retaining walls. 
o Retaining wall language for CRCA:  

o Any retaining wall greater than 4 feet high requires a building permit. 
However, retaining walls that are less than 4 feet high but retain soil that 
supports a structure also require a building permit. Regardless of the 
materials used to build the wall, you must have zoning approval from 
your local municipality, and it must be designed by a Registered Pa design 
professional. Building permit submissions must include zoning approval 
and 2 sets of plans that include construction details of the wall. 

o Retaining Walls are addressed in the 2017 Property Maintenance Code, so there 
may not be a need to add language in the zoning ordinance. 

 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
• County parking lot (behind the Sherriff’s office) 

o The land development plan will be completed soon 
o Approximately 12 spaces  

 
• CCMPO Active Transportation Plan 



Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission Meeting 
Oct 14, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 
 

o Draft plan and Complete Streets Guidance: https://www.crcog.net/centreatp 
 

• Updated Historic District Guidelines  
o Still in progress 

 
• Sign/Lighting enforcement in commercial districts 

o Lights that flash or are multicolored 
o Feather signs (prohibited)  

 Business/commercial district can have feather signs but the Historic 
district may not  

 Flags are permitted but feather signs are not 
 
• Signage plan for Bellefonte Elementary 

o The plan is difficult to interpret so Gina will go back to HRG to ask for an 
updated/more user friendly plan 

 
• EGTS proposed Capital Area Project – public notice meeting: 

o 10/22/24 at Lambert Hall, 5:30 to 7:30 p.m. 
o They are re-doing several pump stations and the closest one to our area is in 

Pleasant Gap 
 
ADDITIONS (after meeting agenda and packet was sent out): 

• CCMPO meeting request- update to their long-range transportation plan 
o They plan to adopt the new/updated plan in September, 2025. 
o They will attend the November 18th Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting to 

explain the plan and answer questions. 
 

• Waterfront project update (an informational email is included in tonight’s packet) 
o The organizers are working on another loan grant for $500,000,000 
o Hoping to break ground in the next year. 
o The architect is still working to re-do the façade for HARB approval.  
o The question was raised regarding timelines for approvals. It was clarified there 

is no deadline or timeline for project development/approval/completion. The 
land is owned by a private owner and there is no limitation on development 
plans. 

 
• Mitigation Strategy and Capability Assessment Workshop (Public Works) 

 
ADJOURNMENT   
Morelli motioned to adjourn. Edwards seconded. Motion carried.  Meeting adjourned at 
6:25p.m.  

https://www.crcog.net/centreatp


34 

4782 

 Code Enforcement Monthly Report  

September 2024 Summary 

Properties Inspected                                                        Calls/Emails Received 
 

Routine 

Citizen Request 

Info Request 

Complaint 

               Warnings Issued                          26                                                                      Fines Issued 

 

Grass / Weeds 

ROW Obstruct 

SW Obstruct 

LOS Obstruct 

Vehicles 

Refuse Cans 

Snow Removal 

Sidewalks 

Animals 

Junk/ Debris                                           

Grass / Weeds 

ROW Obstruct 

SW Obstruct 

LOS Obstruct 

Vehicles 

Refuse 

Snow Removal 

Sidewalks 

Debris 

Junk / Rubbish 

Training

 

6 

1  

 

 

2 

6 

3 

2 

6 

3 

2 

9 

4 8 

5 

12 6 

8 4362 

72 



 

January February March April May June July August September October November December

$50.00 50 $100.00 100 100

$50.00 $100.00 100 100

$50.00 $100.00 100 50

$50.00 $150.00 100 50

$100.00 100

100

2024

Bellefonte Borough

Code Violation Fines 



 

To: Council 

From: Ralph 

Date: October 16, 2024 

Subject: Borough Manager’s Report – September 2024 
 
Operations/Staff Updates: 

➢ ADA Updates per DOJ Settlement Agreement – Training will be ongoing.    

➢ Borough Administrative Office at the Armory building – Citizens are finding 

there way to us to pay a bill, ask a question, etc.  Everything seems to be working out 

well.       

➢ Bandshell Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – Representatives attended 

the October 7th work session.  The group is now waiting to see what happens with 

water well testing in Talleyrand Park approved by council and requested by the 

borough authority.     

➢ Big Spring Cover project – As noted above, the Authority is seriously considering 

a concept that would involve drilling wells which, if successful, would allow the Big 

Spring to be uncovered.  Testing on the Talleyrand Park expanded area was 

approved by council at the October 7th council meeting.  It is hoped that this initial 

testing will be completed by the end of the year.     

➢ CATA Services/Public Transit Services/Exploration of Options – the task 

force has been meeting.   

➢  Former National Guard Armory property along Zion Road – The owner has 

put a hold on the brewery project due to high cost estimates to renovate the 

buildings.  No further updates have been received.     

➢ Kepler Pool /Nittany Valley Rec. Authority – They are seeking additional grant 

funding.  They will not hear about the success of the grant funding until sometime 

in 2025.  Some small improvements are underway. 

 

 

 

 



  

➢ New Elementary School along Airport Road – earthmoving activity is underway. 

 

➢ Parks/Governors Park/Pickle Ball – Don and I met (November 2023) with 

Shawn Thompson, YMCA Director at Governors Park.  Shawn will be submitting a 

proposal to take the tennis court and lay it out for four pickle ball courts.  We will 

get the proposal to council once received.   

➢ Parks/seasonal personnel – The crews are back and taking care of seasonal 

tasks.   

➢ Parkview Heights Stormwater Project – work is complete.     

➢ Pennsylvania Highlands Community College (PHCC) – On August 16th, PHCC 

held their ribbon-cutting ceremony for space at the Match Factory.  This was a great 

event.  Having a branch campus in Centre County was in the works for many years.   

➢ Personnel – Don’s last day was October 4th.  Police Officer Noah Bollman was sworn 

in at the October 7th council meeting.  A wastewater treatment plant operator is leaving.  

We are actively looking for a replacement.    The non-uniform or public works union 

contract discussions are underway.  Alyssa, our administrative assistant, is on maternity 

leave.   

➢ Police Department Upgrades – Bids were opened at the October 7th council 

meeting.  A bidder descoping meeting has been scheduled for October 21st.    

➢ SEDA-COG Joint Rail Authority (JRA) RR Spur along Potter Street – council 

has approved the purchase of the spur with the rail conditional upon having an 

agreement with Bellefonte Historical Railroad Society (BHRS) regarding access and 

use of the spur.  The attorneys are working to determine the best way to transfer 

the spur.   

➢ Service Line Inventory Project – The survey has been submitted.  The official 

deadline is October 16th.  Within 30 days, the Authority must send out letters to 

customers with service lines considered to be “unknown”.   

➢ Streets – This year’s paving project has been completed.  The street department has 

been working on storm drain improvements and reconstruction.  Leaf pick up is 

underway.   

 

 



➢ Streets/Columbia Gas work – paving of the eastbound lane on East Linn, between 

Armor and Wilson, will take place the week of October 21st.        

➢ Streets/Traffic Signal at Parkview and Zion Update – the design is still under 

review.  The feedback is that Penn DoT is also looking at the Airport Road traffic signal 

design/intersection for the new elementary school.  

➢ Streets/Downtown lighting/stamped crosswalks/flashing lights at crosswalks 

– Late in the budget process, we began talking about doing a larger downtown 

improvement project which would replace the current street lighting (including the 

conduit under the sidewalk), finish the street crosswalk imprinting, and add the flashing 

lights at crosswalks.  We are working on a plan to make this project affordable.  

➢ Streets/Storm Drain Issue – Over the last couple of months we have discovered an 

unusual situation.  There is an old hand-laid stone storm drain at the corner of North 

Allegheny and Burrows Lane (West side of Allegheny). The drain follows Burrows Lane to 

the west and then cuts across several backyards.  As it goes across the backyards, it goes 

under at least one barn/garage.  It has an inlet in Locust Lane.   The storm drain continues 

to West Lamb Street (it is the same line that collapsed during heavy flooding a number 

of years ago).  We found out about it through a call from the barn/garage owner on 

Locust Lane.  Some of the large hand-laid stone have fallen in and caused water to back 

up. The water actually pushed up through the concrete floor of the barn/garage.  We 

have met onsite to look at the situation. We tried to find a Right of way or easement 

agreement.  Nothing is recorded.  Borough Solicitor Jeff Stover said the borough is 

responsible for fixing it or relocating it, including fixing the barn/garage floor.  We are 

talking to contractors who have some experience with storm drain repairs.  I will provide 

updates as they become available.  

➢ Waterfront development – the owners did not get the state funding they had 

applied for.  They are seeking other funding and now stating that the project may 

start in 2025.   

➢ 1201 Pine Circle Property Encroachment – No action by the property owner 

has been taken. The borough solicitor and the borough authority solicitor filed a 

joint complaint with Centre County Court.  The property owner has an attorney 

involved and has filed objections and is pushing back via legal proceedings.  The 

property owner was taken to District Magistrate court by Centre Region Code and 

our zoning administrator for not having a fence/pool cover or zoning permit for that 



work.  The property owner was found guilty.  No action has been taken.  The lack 

of action has been brought up to Code and Zoning officials.  The issuance of citations 

and determining the next steps (legal perspective) was recommended.    

September Meetings/Activities Attended 

1 ➢  

2 ➢ Holiday 

3 ➢ Department head meeting 
➢ Council work session and business meeting  

4 ➢ Call – borough solicitor re storm drain that runs through private 
property  

➢ Staff meeting  
➢ Borough Authority meeting  

5 ➢  

6 ➢  

7 ➢  

8 ➢ Traveled to National Rural Water Association (NRWA) conference 
9 ➢ Attended NRWA Conference 

10 ➢ Attended NRWA Conference 

11 ➢   Attended NRWA Conference 

12 ➢   Traveled back from NRWA Conference  
➢   Council agenda planning meeting  
➢   Airport Authority meeting 

13 ➢   Meeting with Larry and Heather Lingle re lease of park space next to 
café  

➢   Meeting with Authority engineer re Big Spring project  
14 ➢  

15 ➢  

16 ➢ Department head meeting 
➢ Council work session and business meeting  

17 ➢ Staff meeting 
➢ Meeting with PA DEP in Williamsport re Big Spring project  

18 ➢   Call with Authority solicitor re agreements 

19 ➢  

20 ➢  

21 ➢  
22 ➢  

23 ➢  

24 ➢ Onsite meeting with property owner re easement for waterline 
➢ Onsite meeting with flag pole vendor re flag pole for Armory building  
➢ Meeting with Union re contract negotiations  

25 ➢   Call with Centre County government rep re tax collection vendor 
change  

26 ➢   Hearing with PA LCB re noise exemption extension  

27 ➢   Call with flag pole vendor re options  

28 ➢  

29 ➢  

30 ➢  
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Activities 
Work session and Council Agenda formatting and preparation 

Agenda/Meeting preparation and follow up, coordinate with staff – directives, policy 
questions  

Unscheduled, informal, meetings, calls, emails to/from staff – Department day-to-day 
operations  

Correspondence – elected, fellow staff, residents, business owners, other government 
staff, realtors, customers, etc. via emails, phone calls, letters  

Draft meeting minutes review  
 



 
Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

 

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

Municipal Update 

3rd Quarter 2024 

January 1 – September 30 

  

Ambulance Incidents; 

 Total Responses (5.1 calls/day) 

o Emergency     1385 total (2023=1370, 2022 = 1343)  

 Transported    1041 

 No Patient, Refusal     141 

 Lift Assist       62 

 Deceased       16 

 Cancelled       79   

 Fire/Police Standbys      43 

o Non-Emergency         3 total    

 

 By Municipality;   2024   2023   2022   

o Bellefonte Borough  423 31%  387 28%  377 28%  

o Benner Township  234 17%  222 16%  208 16% 

o Spring Township  215 16%  284 21%    244 18%  

o Boggs Township  185 13%  172   13%  176 13%  

o Milesburg Borough  122   9%  124    9%  102   8% 

o Union Township    43   3%    51   4%    50   4% 

o Marion Township      39   3%    21    2%    26    2% 

o Howard Township    33   2%    22   2%    41   3% 

o Unionville Borough      14   1%    12     1%    14   1% 

o Huston Township        4 <1%      4 <1%      6 <1%  

o Mutual Aid     71   4%    71   4%   101   5% 

  

Staffing; 

 Career Personnel    22,273 hrs 

 Volunteer Personnel         456 hrs 

 

Fleet Information: 

Unit #  Vehicle    Mileage     YTD Travel       Replace 

 Amb-26-1 2010 Freightliner Ambulance  242,686 miles  13,234  2029 

 Amb-26-2 2018 Freightliner Ambulance  101,487 miles    2,712  2038 

 Amb-26-3 2019 MB Sprinter Ambulance   73,135 miles  12,893  2034 

 Van-26-1 2014 Ford Para-Transit Van             125,721 miles    9,561  2027 

 Van-26-2 2023 Chrysler Para-Transit Van   13,586 miles  14,081  2035  

 Van-26-3 2017 Dodge Para-Transit Van   98,325 miles  12,474  2030 

 Utility-26-1 2005 Ford F-350 MCI/Utility    99,268 miles    3,681  TBD 



 
Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

 

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

2024 Municipal Funding – Received (YTD as of 9/30/24) 

 

    2024     2023     

o Howard   $  4,060 0.50 mill (=)    $4,060 0.50 mill (+) 

o Union  $14,000 0.50 mill (=)  $14,000 0.50 mill (=) 

o Huston  $     268 0.50 mill (=)  $     266 0.50 mill (=)  

o Boggs  $25,000 0.43 mill (+)  $23,100 0.40 mill (-)  

o Bellefonte   $25,815* 0.30 mill (+)                $24,037 0.25 mill (=) 

o Benner  $14,000 0.22 mill (-)  $19,000 0.26 mill (+) 

o Unionville  $     500 0.13 mill (+)  $         0 0.00 mill (=) 

o Centre Co Govt $  1,500 0.10 mill 

o Marion       $  6,000 0.43 mill (+) 

o Milesburg       $  6,100 0.42 mill (+)  

o Spring       $ 10,000 0.10 mill (+) 

 

2024 Municipal Funding Utilization – (YTD as of 9/30/24) 

 $  6,812 Roof replacement loan payment x9 month 

 $  5,591 Payroll, partial x2 pay period (2 week payroll $21,500 average) 

 $16,209 Insurance – liability, property, vehicle, portable equipment, umbrella – (6 month) 

 $  9,606 Litter (x3) replacement, annual financing #4 of 4 payments 

 $14,688 Ambulance Loan payment x9, Freightliner Amb 26-2 

 $  9,355 Ambulance Loan payment x9, Sprinter Amb 26-3 

 $62,261 Total 

 

 $28,973 Balance 

 

 

 Projected Additional Expenditures 10/01/24 – 12/31/24 

 

o $ 4,896 Ambulance 26-2 Loan x3 month 

o $ 3,118 Ambulance 26-3 Loan x3 month 

o $ 2,271 Roof Loan x3 month 

o $ 8,006 Insurance – liability, property, vehicle, port equip, umbrella (quarter) 

o $ 2,100 Calibrate, inspect, PM; O2 regulators, suction units, BP Cuffs 

o $17,671 Stairchair x1 replace/upgrade – battery-powered Stryker Xpedition 

o $18,279 Oxygen fill station/cascade system 

o $56,341 Total 

 

 

 

 









 

 

,BELLEFONTE BOROUGH WATER AUTHORITY  

MEETING MINUTES  

REGULAR MEETING 
October 1, 2024 – 6 p.m. 

301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200 

Bellefonte, PA  16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order October 1, 2024 at 6 p.m.  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

ROLL CALL  Authority members present:     

   Mr. Joe Beigle  

   Mr. Greg Brown 

   Mr.  Dan DeLotto 

   Mr. Jon Eaton  

   Mr. Joe Falcone 

   Mr. Frank (Buddy) Halderman via Zoom  

   Mr. Doug Johnson  

   

                            Staff      

   Mr. Frank Noll, WWTP Superintendent 

   Mr. Shannon Struble, WWTP Assistant Superintendent 

   Mr. Matt Auman, Public Works Superintendent  

   Ms. Julie Brooks, Public Works Assistant Superintendent  

   Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager  

    

  Guests  Ms. Jean Ryan, Engineer via Zoom  

    

              

 

MINUTES  

• A motion was made by Beigle and seconded by Eaton to approve the minutes from September 

4th, 2024. No discussion. Motion carried.  

 

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA  

majority vote. The Authority should state the reason why the action item is being added to the 

Agenda. The Authority may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

• NONE  

 

 

 

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Authority 

October 1, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMUNICATIONS- ORAL 

• NONE 

 

  

COMMUNICATIONS (Written) 

• DEP – Stream Reclassification work 

• Email – UAJA Engineer - Biosolids Agreement, Offer of Tour 

 

 

FINANCIALS (Mr. Falcone) 

• Budget v. Actual August 2024 (first 2/3 of the year) 

o Water Collection Revenues are at .61 (approximately $77,000 under budget) 

o Bulk water sales are at .62  

o Water revenue from Niagara 49.73 

o Water revenue from Milesburg 37.14 

o It was noted that it’s harder for customers to pay their bills lately. 

 

Beigle motioned and Halderman seconded to approve the financial report. Motion carried. 

 

 

ENGINEER’S REPORT (Jean Ryan, Barton and Loguidice) 

• The engineer (Jean) highlighted several projects completed in September. 

o Projects: Big Spring Project (wells) 

▪ Timeframes – Geophysical Survey could be done by November 

▪ The Geophysical Survey will offer more information and help narrow 

down cost estimates. 

▪ It was noted that costs incurred in the survey process ($53,000) may not be 

returned. 

▪ The overall goal is to get the cover off the spring 

 

Beigle motioned and Halderman seconded to spend the money, approximately $53,000  

to complete the GIS and Geophysical surveys completed. The motion carried.  

  

SEWER REPORT (Superintendent - Frank) 

• The Superintendent highlighted the details of various projects and repairs completed in 

September. 

 

• Bulk Water sales for September: 72,700g 

 

• A worker submitted his letter of resignation. The Authority will be posting the open position.  

 

• Discussion regarding pre-treatment (industrial waste/PFAS) water reports.  

 

 

WATER REPORT (Matt) 

• Details were offered regarding projects and repairs completed in September. 



Bellefonte Borough Authority 

October 1, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 

 

o   
 

 

OLD BUSINESS    

• Water Line for Hotel, Length of Service Line, McCrossin Property – update. 

 

• Agreement with Shantel Cable (Hughes Street) – Agreement is nearing completion by solicitor, 

attorney. The Authority may take action to approve Agreement conditional upon final review 

by Solicitor.  

 

Beigle motioned to accept the agreement as presented. Johnson seconded. Motion to approve 

carried.  

 

• Agreement with UAJA – biosolids disposal.  

 

Beigle motioned and Halderman seconded to approve signing the Agreement. Motion carried.  

 

• Big Spring Cover Project Update. Recap of meeting with PA DEP, consider approval of next 

steps. The Authority may take action on approving moving ahead with outlined next steps. 

 

• Service Line Inventory project update. DEP upload deadline October 16. After the Inventory is 

due, sending a letter is next. The Authority may take action to approve steps. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

• Daily Water Withdrawal September 2024. No action is requested. 
 

DISCUSSION 
• Lawsuit in Parkview – right of way 

o Went to district magistrate court and the homeowner was found guilty for fence violations 

o Fines will be reduced if homeowner complies 

o The encroachment issues are in the Centre County Court system  

 

 

• An Authority member commented that the engineering firm Barton and Loguidice has been a 

big asset to the Authority. 

 

• Logan Green – need an update 

 

• Next meeting will be November 5th, 2024. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

•  Halderman motioned and Falcone seconded to adjourn tonight’s meeting. No discussion. 

Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:52pm. 





Centre County Library & Historical Museum Board of Trustees Meeting
Holt Memorial Library
Thursday, July 25, 2024

6:00 pm

Trustees Present: Deborah Cleeton, Carl Inglesby, Kathleen Gomez, Vickie Barnett, Mary
Prendergast, Lindsey Kurtz
Trustees Absent: Justin Miller, Pam McCloskey, Bryce Taylor
Staff Present: Michele Reese, Denise Sticha
Guests Present:
Call to Order: Carl Inglesby, President, called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm.

Public Comments and Correspondence: Sticha read a note from Caitlyn Bumbarger to the
board thanking them for the opportunity to be a part of the library. She worked at the Holt
branch. Inglesby stated that it was to have a small get together for Troy Butler for his 20 years of
service with the library. Sticha stated it is important to recognize staff for their length of service.
Sticha stated that she had gone to Bradford Library to present the Friends Group of the year
award to the Bradford Library Friends Group.

Consent Agenda: Cleeton made a motion to approve the minutes. Seconded by Barnett.
Motion carried. Barnett made a motion to approve the Director’s June and July Operations
Report. Seconded by Gomez. Motion carried.

Director’s notes- Sticha updated the Board on the SLP participation numbers and discussed the
events that were held throughout SLP. Kurtz asked how many hotspots total do we have now.
Sticha stated that there will be a total of 8, and they will not transit to Schlow. Further
discussion was held regarding the hotspots.

Finance Report and Investment Summary: Sticha reviewed the P&L and stated we are trending
a little high on salary: some other expenses are also tracking a little higher than budgeted. We
have not received a significant sum of money from our local municipalities at this time. Sticha
stated she will be sending out the municipality donation request letters earlier this year so they
have them for their September meetings. We are still low on book budget expenses, it is looking
better than in years past. Discussion held regarding the P&L. Barnett asked about the interest
rate on the money market at FNB. Discussion held regarding other rates and the funds in the
money market. Inglesby stated that he was disappointed with the return on the Coombs
investments. FNB investments are doing well. Sticha will contact Kristen and Scott from We Are
Invested regarding the investment setup. Inglesby asked about the CD to be opened and Sticha
stated that we will be opening that soon.
Cleeton made a motion to approve the Finance Report and Investment Summary. Seconded
by Prendergast. Motion carried.

New Business:
Security camera policy draft – 1st reading - Currently, our policy is one sentence in the Patron
Privacy policy which is a Federation policy. Since both the Bellefonte and Holt branch will have
security cameras Sticha suggests we need something more robust. Sticha stated that Schlow

1



had wanted to place the security policy in with the Patron Private policy. She feels that the
policies can be two separate ones. The Board concurred. Discussion held regarding the Security
policy.

RFP for architectural services – Centre Hall expansion- Inglesby asked the Board if they had any
questions regarding the RFP. Sticha stated that Sengle has put a lot of work into the RFP. Cleeton
asked if it would be beneficial to have an architect that has experience with libraries. Discussion
followed regarding the RFP and architectural services. Inglesby stated that they would like to
mail the RFP’s out next week. Barnett made a motion to approve the RFP for architectural
services for the Centre Hall expansion. Seconded by Kurtz. Motion carried.

Old Business:
Paid Time Off policy - Sticha reviewed the policy and noted the changes that were made as
suggested. Discussion held regarding the policy and changes. Cleeton made a motion to adopt
the PTO policy draft #4. Seconded by Barnett. Motion carried.

Amendment to the CCFPL Collection Development policy - Sticha reviewed the changes and
stated that CCL&HM, Schlow and the Federation need to approve the change. Discussion was
held regarding the policy. Cleeton made a motion to accept the amendment to the CCFPL
Collection Development policy. Seconded by Kurtz. Motion carried.

Municipal Visits: No discussion.
Committee Reports:
Finance: Cleeton stated that she has tried to access the FNB investments. Inglesby stated that
she will need to contact FNB. Sticha stated that we have received a draft of the 2023 audit.
Sticha and Reese have briefly reviewed the audit and did not see any issues. Sticha stated that
we will schedule to have Paul Link at the September meeting.

Personnel: Holt needs to replace Bumbarger. Sticha stated that the position has been
advertised in multiple papers.
Kurtz asked what the plan is for when Kathleen Edwards is out on leave. Amanda Zanzalari will
cover her position, Julie Valora, Lisa Shaffer and Ceclia Doty will help to cover hours as needed.

Property:
Museum – Sticha stated that we have received a grant from the State College Rotary and the
District Rotary for the Storyteller chair project. The district grant will not be available until
September. Discussion was held regarding the storyteller chair design and starting the project in
September. Inglesby stated that Sengle has done some research regarding the gutter issue on
the side issue. They are going to do some more research and then inform the Board what they
have found out.

Bellefonte branch – Security cameras will be installed starting August 9th. Discussion was held
regarding the number of cameras to be installed and the layout of the branch.

Bookmobile- Nothing to report.

2



Centre Hall – Sticha gave an update on the ARPA grant and the Keystone Grant. The ARPA grant
decision has not been made as of yet and should be made by mid-July -mid-August. Keystone
Grant opens July 17th. Sticha met with Natalie Corman from the Commissioner's office. The
County is willing to be the municipal partner, but they want to have an MOU created between
the Library and the County. Discussion was held regarding the application for the grant and the
50/50 match and reaching out to the PPVLS regarding their monetary commitment. The
deadline for the Keystone Grant is October 17th. Sticha stated that her next project is to get a
jumpstart on the grant application.

Holt – Inglesby asked if all of the repairs have been completed at Holt and mentioned that the
lines look like they have been repainted. The crumbling concrete parking curbs still need to be
removed.

Bellefonte Little House - Inglesby stated that Sengle has met with Brian Chilton regarding the
steps down into the garden. Sengle and Chilton discussed making both the steps and porch ADA
compliant. Discussion held regarding the changes and working with the Garden Club and the
Bellefonte Little House Friends Group. Inglesby asked about the backflow water test to be done
at the Little House and the plumbing issue they are having. Reese stated that Robert
Pannebaker does the testing for the Bellefonte and Philipsburg branch and may be able to help
the group.

Fundraising/Development: Sticha stated that the Annual Appeal will go out in November the
Tuesday after Thanksgiving.

Planning: No updates.

Nomination: Sticha stated that she met with Rhonda Rumbaugh to discuss the possibility of her
fulfilling the Centre Hall board position for next year.

Holt Friends - They had a book sale during Heritage Days in July.

Bellefonte Friends - Cleeton stated that the Friends group was involved in the Children’s Fair.
The Arts & Crafts fair is next week and the library will have a Horatio themed event. A bake sale
was held on June 8th by the Friends group. The next Friends meeting will be August 7th.

PPVLS- Sent out the name change survey in the June Grapevine. Discussion was held regarding
the name change. A book sale was held during the Centre Hall yard sale. They are planning to
do their annual steak dinner on October 19th at the American Legion.

Comments for the Good of the Order and Adjournment: The September meeting is the 26th in
Bellefonte. It will be a hybrid meeting. Federation meeting is the 22nd of August.
Kurtz made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 pm. Seconded by Barnett. Motion
carried.

Respectfully submitted,
Michele Reese, Office Manager

3







BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 

WORKPLACE SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING 

MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY August 21,  2024 7:30 A.M. 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH BUILDING COUNCIL ROOM 
Members Present: 

Jason Ostroskie (Member, streets) 
Matt Auman (Member, Mgmt) 
Steve Caldana (Member, Water) Chair 
Sam Horner (Member, Refuse) 
Julie Brooks (Member, Mgmt) 
Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep) 
Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP-Mgmt) 
Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS) 
Bill Witmer (Member, Police) 

Members Absent: 
Seth Klinefelter (Member, WWTP) 
Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept) 

Administrative: Alyssa Doherty 

Guests: Barb Smith, Teeter Group-Zoom 

CALL TO ORDER: 7:31 am 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - July 17th, 2024 

Mr. Auman moved to approve the meeting minutes. Mr. Witmer seconded. Motion carried. 

OLD BUSINESS: 
Safety Concern Forms Review: None. 

Recent Safety incidents or near-miss reviews: None 

2nd Quarter Facility Inspection- Governor's & Talleyrand Park inspection deadline is 
September 301\ 2024. 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER: Jason 
Discussion on tree trimming for garbage truck safety. 

NEXT MEETING: The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, September 18, 2024 @ 
7:30 a.m. 

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Ostroskie moved to adjourn. Mr. Brachbill seconded the motion. 
Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7 :34 am. 







1

Ralph Stewart

From: Tom Songer II <tfsonger@torrongroup.com>
Sent: Friday, October 11, 2024 4:14 PM
To: Ralph Stewart
Cc: Mark Morath (mrm107@centrehotel.com); Edward Tubbs (etubbs@centrehotel.com); 

Bruce White (bbw165@centrehotel.com); Thomas Songer
Subject: RE: Update on waterfront project 

Hello Ralph—sorry for not getting back to you sooner but I am out of town.   
 
With respect to the BWF project -we are finalizing the design of the hotel and the parking garage.   We have converted 
the second-floor area of the hotel to guest rooms.   If there is a demand for meeting rooms for banquets, we will 
consider using some of the space in the 1st floor of the parking garage for meeting space.  This space will be next to the 
kitchen that will serve the Farm To Table restaurant.   
 
We didn’t get the BIOS (State Building In Our Sites) grant or loan that we applied for.  All the money went to industrial 
parks.   
 
Our consultant, Teresa Sparacino with DELTA Development is planning on applying for loan/grant funding relating to the 
$500M that was in the state budget as soon as the guidelines come out.  
 
When we submitted our BIOS application,  I had many letters of support along with 3 Letters of Intent to lease 
commercial space in the parking garage.    
 
We have been meeting with representatives of PNC about financing for the hotel and garage.   PNC reps. have indicated 
that we may qualify for a community improvement project.  We have had several meetings with them and expect to 
have a meeting next week with them.    
 
With interest rates coming down and material costs having stabilized, we are working to try to have our financing in 
place within the next 6 months so we can begin construction next year.   We have had a financial study done by Walker 
Associates for the parking garage which shows that the parking garage is feasible.  I am currently working on updating 
financial information for PNC Bank.  
 
We plan on using a construction manager to oversee and manage the construction of the project for us.  I have had 
meeting with the construction manager that we intend to use.   
 
Our architect has made changes to the parking garage based on the input we received from the HARB, and he expects to 
schedule another meeting with the HARB in the near future.  
 
We have set up a website with additional information at www.bellefontewaterfrontproject.com that you can also refer 
to.  
 
Let me know if you have any questions.     
 
Have a nice weekend.  
 
Tom Songer II, PE  
Torron Group 
366 Walker Drive, Suite 201 
State College, Pa. 16801 



2

P 814-231-2800 #1 
C 814-404-7285 
www.torrongroup.com 
 

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 9, 2024 10:48 AM 
To: Tom Songer II <tfsonger@torrongroup.com> 
Subject: Update on waterfront project  
 
Hi Tom, 
 
Our council president asked me for an update on your project. I wanted to check in with you to get an update?  Please 
let us know where things stand. 
 
Thank you, 
Ralph  
 
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
 
























	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 10212024
	WORK SESSION--Review of Funds, 2025 Budget Work
	WORK SESSION--Goals & Priorities 2025
	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA. 10212024
	COMMUNICATIONS--Fee Reduction Request, Use of Governors Park Ballfield for Tournament
	COMMUNICATIONS--Gas Compressor Upgrade In Centre County
	COMMUNICATIONS--Request to discuss LRTP
	CONSENT--Budget to Actual September 2024
	CONSENT--Budget to Actual Summary September 2024
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.10072024 draft
	CONSENT--Stover Invoice
	CONSENT--Labor Counsel invoice
	CONSENT--Treasurers Report September 2024
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary September 2024
	POLICE CHIEF REPORT--September2024
	REPORTS--PARKING--September2024
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 10.21.2024
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 10.21.2024
	OCA--Email about Bellefonte Business Program
	OCA--10.14.2024-PC-Agenda
	OCA--Planning Commission Mtg Minutes--10.14.2024.DRAFT

	CODE--September Report
	CODE--Copy of Fines Collected
	Borough Manager Report September 2024
	REPORTS--EMS Municipal Updates 3rd Quarter 2024
	REPORTS--BIACC October2024
	REPORTS--Authority Meeting Minutes.10012024.DRAFT
	REPORTS--Airport Authority Meeting Minutes 09122024
	REPORTS--CCLHM Board Meeting Minutes July 25, 2024.docx (1)
	REPORTS--Work Place Safety Committee Minutes July August Sept2024
	OLD BUSINESS--Update on Waterfront Development
	OLD BUSINESS--BASD Agreement Gov Park Ballfield
	OLD BUSINESS--Bandshell Group Request for Big Spring Docs
	Council Code of Conduct

